

**STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES**

**MEDICAL CARE COMMISSION QUARTERLY MEETING
DIVISION OF HEALTH SERVICE REGULATION
809 RUGGLES DRIVE, RALEIGH NC 27603
EDGERTON BUILDING
CONFERENCE ROOM – 026A**

OR

TEAMS Video Conference: [Join the meeting now](#)

OR

Dial-IN: 1-984-204-1487 / Passcode: 497 797 558#

**June 18, 2025 (Wednesday)
11:30 a.m.**

Agenda

I. Meeting Opens – Roll Call

II. Chairman’s Comments.....Dr. John Meier

III. Public Meeting Statement.....Dr. John Meier

This meeting of the Medical Care Commission is open to the public but is not a public hearing. Therefore, any discussion will be limited to members of the Commission and staff unless questions are specifically directed by the Commission to someone in the audience.

IV. Ethics Statement.....Dr. John Meier

The State Government Ethics Act requires members to act in the best interest of the public and adhere to the ethical standards and rules of conduct in the State Government Ethics Act, including the duty to continually monitor, evaluate, and manage personal, financial, and professional affairs to ensure the absence of conflicts of interest.

V. New Business

A. Rules for Adoption (Discuss rules)

1. Adult Care Home/Family Care Home Rules.....Black/Lamphere/Jones

- **Rules: 10A NCAC 13F .1604 & 10A NCAC 13G .1604**

(See Exhibit A)

VI. Meeting Adjournment

10A NCAC 13F .1604 is amended as published in 39:20 NCR 1354-1358 as follows:

10A NCAC 13F .1604 RATING CALCULATION

(a) Ratings shall be based on:

- (1) Inspections completed pursuant to G.S. ~~131D-2(b)(1a)~~; 131D-2.11(a) and (a1);
- (2) Statutory and Rule requirements listed in Rule .1603 of this Section;
- (3) Type ~~A~~ A1, Type A2, or uncorrected Type B penalty violations identified pursuant to G.S. 131D-34; and
- (4) Other items listed in Subparagraphs (c)(1) and (c)(2) of this Rule.

(b) The initial rating a facility receives shall remain in effect until the next inspection. If an activity occurs which results in the assignment of additional merit or demerit points, a new certificate shall be issued pursuant to Rule .1602(a) of this Section.

(c) The rating shall be based on a 100 point scale. Beginning with the initial rating and repeating with each annual or biennial inspection, the facility shall be assigned 100 points and shall receive merits or demerits, which shall be added or subtracted from the 100 points, respectively. The merits and demerits shall be assigned as follows:

(1) Merit Points

- (A) If the facility corrects ~~citations~~ a standard deficiency of noncompliance with the statutes or rules listed in Rule .1603 of this Subchapter, ~~which are not related to the identification of a Type A violation or an uncorrected Type B violation~~, the facility shall receive 1.25 merit points for each corrected deficiency;
- (B) ~~If the facility receives citations on its annual inspection with no Type A or Type B violations and the rating from the annual inspection is one or zero stars the facility may request Division of Health Service Regulation to conduct a follow up inspection not less than 60 days after the date of the annual inspection. A follow up inspection shall be completed depending upon the availability of Division of Health Service Regulation staff. As determined by the follow up review, the facility shall receive 1.25 merit points for each corrected deficiency; If the facility corrects a citation for which a Type B violation was identified, the facility shall receive 1.75 merit points;~~
- (C) ~~If the facility corrects the citation for which a Type A violation was identified, the facility shall receive 2.5 merit points and shall receive an additional 2.5 merit points following the next annual inspection if no further Type A violations are identified; If the facility corrects a previously uncorrected Type B violation, the facility shall receive 1.75 merit points;~~
- (D) ~~If the facility corrects a previously uncorrected Type B violation, the facility shall receive 1.25 merit points; If the facility corrects the citation for which a Type A1 or Type A2 violation was identified, the facility shall receive 5 merit points;~~
- (E) ~~If the facility corrects a previously uncorrected Type A1 or Type A2 violation, the facility shall receive 5 merit points;~~

- ~~(E)~~(F) If the facility's admissions have been ~~suspended~~, suspended pursuant to 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive 5 merit points if the suspension is removed;
- ~~(G)~~ If the facility's license is restored to a full license after being downgraded to a provisional license, the facility shall receive 5 merit points;
- ~~(F)~~(H) If the facility participates in any quality improvement program pursuant to G.S. 131D-10, the facility shall receive 2.5 merit points;
- ~~(G)~~ If the facility receives NC NOVA special licensure designation, the facility shall receive 2.5 merit points;
- ~~(I)~~ If the facility establishes an ongoing resident council which meets at least quarterly, the facility shall receive .5 merit point;
- ~~(J)~~ If the facility establishes an ongoing family council which meets at least quarterly, the facility shall receive .5 merit point;
- ~~(K)~~ If the facility's designated on-site staff member who directs the facility's infection control activities in accordance with G.S. 131D-4.4A has completed the "Infection Control in Long Term Care Facilities" course offered by the University of North Carolina Statewide Program for Infection Control and Epidemiology (SPICE) every two years, the facility shall receive .5 merit point.
- ~~(H)~~(L) ~~On or after the effective date of this Rule, if~~ If the facility permanently installs a generator or has a contract with a generator provider to provide emergency power for essential functions of the facility, the facility shall receive 2 merit points. For purposes of this ~~Section, Rule~~, essential functions mean those functions necessary to maintain the health or safety of residents during power outages greater than 6 ~~hours~~. hours and include the fire alarm system, heating, lighting, refrigeration for medication storage, minimal cooking, elevators, medical equipment, computers, door alarms, special locking systems, sewage and well operation where applicable, sprinkler system, and telephones. If the facility has an existing permanently installed generator or an existing contract with a generator provider, the facility shall receive 1 merit point for maintaining the generator in working order or continuing the contract with a generator provider; ~~and~~
- ~~(I)~~(M) ~~On or after the effective date of this Rule, if~~ If the facility installs automatic sprinklers in compliance with the North Carolina Building Code, and maintains the system in working order, the facility shall receive 3 merit points. If the facility has an existing automatic sprinkler, the facility shall receive 2 merit points for subsequent ratings for maintaining the automatic sprinklers in ~~good working order~~. order; and
- ~~(N)~~ If the facility engages the services of a third-party company to conduct resident and family satisfaction surveys at least annually for the purpose of improving resident care, the facility shall receive 1 merit point. Resident and family satisfaction surveys shall not be conducted by any employees of the facility, or a third-party company affiliated with the facility. The

satisfaction survey results shall be made available upon request and in a location accessible to residents and visitors in the facility.

(2) Demerit Points

(A) For each ~~standard deficiency citation~~ of noncompliance with the statutes or rules listed in Rule .1603 of this Subchapter, the facility shall receive a demerit of 2 points. The facility shall receive demerit points only once for citations in which the findings are identical to those findings used for another citation;

(B) For each citation of a Type ~~A~~ A1 or Type A2 violation, the facility shall receive a demerit of ~~10 points; points, and if the Type A1 or Type A2 violation remains uncorrected as result of a follow-up inspection, the facility shall receive an additional demerit of 10 points;~~

(C) For each citation of a Type B violation, the facility shall receive a demerit of 3.5 points and if the Type B violation remains uncorrected as the result of a follow-up inspection, the facility shall receive an additional demerit of 3.5 points;

(D) If the facility's admissions are ~~suspended~~, suspended pursuant G.S. 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive a demerit of 10 points; however, if the facility's admissions are suspended pursuant to ~~G.S. 131D-4.2~~, G.S. 131D-2.7, ~~G.S. 131D-2.7~~, G.S.131D-4.2, the facility shall not receive any demerit points; and

~~(E)~~ If the facility's license is downgraded to a provisional license pursuant to G.S. 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive a demerit of 10 points;

~~(E)(F)~~ If the facility receives a notice of revocation against its ~~license~~, license pursuant to G.S. 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive a demerit of ~~31 points; points; and~~

~~(G)~~ If the facility's license is summarily suspended pursuant to G.S. 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive a demerit of 31 points.

(d) Facilities shall be given a rating of zero to four stars depending on the score assigned pursuant to Paragraph (a), (b) or (c) of this Rule. Ratings shall be assigned as follows:

(1) Four stars shall be assigned to any facility whose score is 100 points or greater on two consecutive annual or biennial inspections;

(2) Three stars shall be assigned for scores of 90 to 99.9 points, or for any facility whose score is 100 points or greater on one annual or biennial inspection;

(3) Two stars shall be assigned for scores of 80 to 89.9 points;

(4) One star shall be assigned for scores of 70 to 79.9 points; and

(5) Zero stars shall be assigned for scores of 69.9 points or lower.

History Note: Authority G.S. 131D-4.5; 131D-10;

Eff. July 3, ~~2008~~; 2008;

Readopted Eff. August 1, 2025;

Amended Eff. August 1, 2025.

10A NCAC 13G .1604 is amended as published in 39:20 NCR 1354-1358 as follows:

10A NCAC 13G .1604 RATING CALCULATION

(a) Ratings shall be based on:

- (1) Inspections completed pursuant to G.S. ~~131D-2(b)(1a)~~, 131D-2.11(a) and (a1);
- (2) Statutory and Rule requirements listed in Rule .1603 of this Section;
- (3) Type ~~A~~ A1, Type A2, or uncorrected Type B penalty violations identified pursuant to G.S. 131D-34; and
- (4) Other items listed in Subparagraphs (c)(1) and (c)(2) of this Rule.

(b) The initial rating a facility receives shall remain in effect until the next inspection. If an activity occurs which results in the assignment of additional merit or demerit points, a new certificate shall be issued pursuant to Rule .1602(a) of this Section.

(c) The rating shall be based on a 100 point scale. Beginning with the initial rating and repeating with each annual or biennial inspection, the facility shall be assigned 100 points and shall receive merits or demerits, which shall be added or subtracted from the 100 points, respectively. The merits and demerits shall be assigned as follows:

(1) Merit Points

- (A) If the facility corrects ~~citations~~ a standard deficiency of noncompliance with the statutes or rules listed in Rule .1603 of this Subchapter, ~~which are not related to the identification of a Type A violation or an uncorrected Type B violation~~, the facility shall receive 1.25 merit points for each corrected deficiency;
- (B) ~~If the facility receives citations on its annual inspection with no Type A or Type B violations and the rating from the annual inspection is one or zero stars, the facility may request Division of Health Service Regulation to conduct a follow up inspection not less than 60 days after the date of the annual inspection. A follow up inspection shall be completed depending upon the availability of Division of Health Service Regulation staff. As determined by the follow up review, the facility shall receive 1.25 merit points for each corrected deficiency; If the facility corrects a citation for which a Type B violation was identified, the facility shall receive 1.75 merit points;~~
- (C) ~~If the facility corrects the citation for which a Type A violation was identified, the facility shall receive 2.5 merit points and shall receive an additional 2.5 merit points following the next annual inspection if no further Type A violations are identified; If the facility corrects a previously uncorrected Type B violation, the facility shall receive 1.75 merit points;~~
- (D) ~~If the facility corrects a previously uncorrected Type B violation, the facility shall receive 1.25 merit points; If the facility corrects the citation for which a Type A1 or Type A2 violation was identified, the facility shall receive 5 merit points;~~
- (E) If the facility corrects a previously uncorrected Type A1 or A2 violation, the facility shall receive 5 merit points;

- ~~(E)~~(F) If the facility's admissions have been ~~suspended~~, suspended pursuant 131D-2.7, to the facility shall receive 5 merit points if the suspension is removed;
- ~~(G)~~ If the facility's license is restored to a full license after being downgraded to a provisional license, the facility shall receive 5 merit points;
- ~~(F)~~(H) If the facility participates in any quality improvement program pursuant to G.S. 131D-10, the facility shall receive 2.5 merit points;
- ~~(G)~~ If the facility receives NC NOVA special licensure designation, the facility shall receive 2.5 merit points;
- ~~(I)~~ If the facility establishes an ongoing resident council which meets at least quarterly, the facility shall receive .5 merit point;
- ~~(J)~~ If the facility establishes an ongoing family council which meets at least quarterly, the facility shall receive .5 merit point;
- ~~(K)~~ If the facility's designated on-site staff member who directs the facility's infection control activities in accordance with G.S. 131D-4.4A has completed the "Infection Control in Long Term Care Facilities" course offered by the University of North Carolina Statewide Program for Infection Control and Epidemiology (SPICE) every two years, the facility shall receive .5 merit point;
- ~~(H)~~(L) ~~On or after the effective date of this Rule, if~~ If the facility permanently installs a generator or has a contract with a generator provider to provide emergency power for essential functions of the facility, the facility shall receive 2 merit points. For purposes of this
~~Section, Rule,~~ essential functions mean those functions necessary to maintain the health or safety of residents during power outages greater than ~~6 hours~~. hours and include the fire alarm system, heating, lighting, refrigeration for medication storage, minimal cooking, elevators, medical equipment, computers, door alarms, special locking systems, sewage and well operation where applicable, sprinkler system, and telephones. If the facility has an existing permanently installed generator or an existing contract with a generator provider, the facility shall receive 1 merit point for maintaining the generator in working order or continuing the contract with a generator provider; ~~and~~
- ~~(I)~~(M) ~~On or after the effective date of this Rule, if~~ If the facility installs automatic sprinklers in compliance with the North Carolina Building Code, and maintains the system in working order, the facility shall receive 3 merit points. If the facility has an existing automatic sprinkler, the facility shall receive 2 merit points for subsequent ratings for maintaining the automatic sprinklers in ~~good working order~~. order; and
- ~~(N)~~ If the facility engages the services of a third-party company to conduct resident and family satisfaction surveys at least annually for the purpose of improving resident care, the facility shall receive 1 merit point. Resident and family satisfaction surveys shall not be conducted by any employees of the facility, or a third-party company affiliated with the facility. The

satisfaction survey results shall be made available upon request and in a location accessible to residents and visitors in the facility.

(2) Demerit Points

(A) For each ~~standard deficiency citation~~ of noncompliance with the statutes or rules listed in Rule .1603 of this Subchapter, the facility shall receive a demerit of 2 points. The facility shall receive demerit points only once for citations in which the findings are identical to those findings used for another citation;

(B) For each citation of a Type ~~A~~ A1 or Type A2 violation, the facility shall receive a demerit of 10 ~~points; points, and if the Type A1 or Type A2 violation remains uncorrected as result of a follow-up inspection, the facility shall receive an additional demerit of 10 points;~~

(C) For each citation of a Type B violation, the facility shall receive a demerit of 3.5 points and if the Type B violation remains uncorrected as the result of a follow-up inspection, the facility shall receive an additional demerit of 3.5 points;

(D) If the facility's admissions are ~~suspended~~, suspended pursuant to G.S. 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive a demerit of 10 points; however, if the facility's admissions are suspended pursuant to ~~G.S. 131D-4.2, G.S. 131D-2.7, G.S. 131D-2.7, G.S. 131D-4.2~~, the facility shall not receive any demerit points; ~~and~~

~~(E)~~ If the facility's license is downgraded to a provisional license pursuant to G.S. 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive a demerit of 10 points;

~~(E)(F)~~ If the facility receives a notice of revocation against its ~~license~~, license pursuant to G.S. 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive a demerit of 31 ~~points; points; and~~

~~(G)~~ If the facility's license is summarily suspended pursuant to G.S. 131D-2.7, the facility shall receive a demerit of 31 points.

(d) Facilities shall be given a rating of zero to four stars depending on the score assigned pursuant to Paragraph (a), (b) or (c) of this Rule. Ratings shall be assigned as follows:

(1) Four stars shall be assigned to any facility whose score is 100 points or greater on two consecutive annual or biennial inspections;

(2) Three stars shall be assigned for scores of 90 to 99.9 points, or for any facility whose score is 100 points or greater on one annual or biennial inspection;

(3) Two stars shall be assigned for scores of 80 to 89.9 points;

(4) One star shall be assigned for scores of 70 to 79.9 points; and

(5) Zero stars shall be assigned for scores of 69.9 points or lower.

History Note: Authority G.S. 131D-4.5; 131D-10;

Eff. July 3, ~~2008~~, 2008;

Readopted Eff. August 1, 2025;

Amended Eff. August 1, 2025.